Public Document Pack





NOTICE OF MEETING

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

WEDNESDAY, 16 JUNE 2021 AT 4.00 PM

VIRTUAL REMOTE MEETING

Telephone enquiries to Lisa Gallacher (023) 9283 4056 Email: lisa.gallacher@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Membership

Councillor Suzy Horton (Chair) Reverend Sam Duddles (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Tom Coles

Maria Cole Taki Jaffer sarah coote

Sheikh Fazle Abbas Datoo Syed Aminul Haque Elizabeth Jenkerson Christine McMillan Geoff Wheeler John Mills

Pastor Chris Thomas

Sandra Teacher

Akshat Metha

Jaswant Singh-Digpal Barbara Spiegelhalter

Geoff Wade Sue Bowen Jane Kelly Kari Laing Aasha Small Debbie Lucas Gemma Self Ali Beechurst

Councillor Ryan Brent

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

AGENDA

- 1 Welcome and Introductions
- 2 Moment for Quiet Reflection

3 Election of Chair and Vice Chair

4 Apologies for Absence

5 Declaration of Members' Interest

Members are asked to identify any pecuniary, prejudicial or personal interests on any matters on the agenda.

Note: Should any indication of an interest arise during the meeting, members are asked to declare at that time, as soon as is practicable.

6 Minutes of the Previous meeting held on 3 March 2021 (Pages 5 - 10)

RECOMMENDED the SACRE agrees the minutes of the previous meeting held 3 March 2021 as a correct record.

7 Matters Arising from the minutes of 3 March 2021

Members are invited to raise any matters from the minutes that are not otherwise identified on the agenda.

8 Membership Report (Pages 11 - 12)

To receive Membership Report

RECOMMENDED that SACRE appoints Barbara Spiegelhalter as Humanist representative on group A with Geoff Wade as the reserve Humanist representative member. SACRE also formally co-opts Jessi Wilson from the Council of Portsmouth Students (CoPS) to SACRE.

9 Brief updates or notification of items to be brought to a future meeting

To receive any updates from Members of SACRE.

Note: Items requiring decision will need to be brought to a future meeting.

Monitoring Group Report (Pages 13 - 16)

To receive Monitoring Group Report

RECOMMENDED that SACRE notes the report from the Monitoring Group

11 Update on National Religious Education Matters (Pages 17 - 18)

This report updates SACRE regarding National RE matters including activities of the Religious Education Council (REC), the National Association of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education (NASACRE) and Ofsted's latest report in relation to Religious Education.

RECOMMENDED that the report from the Professional Adviser is noted.

12 Date and venue of the next meeting

The next scheduled meeting is 3 November 2021. The Agreed Syllabus Conference will take place at 3:30pm at the SACRE main meeting will commence at 4:30pm (or at the conclusion of the Agreed Syllabus Conference, whichever is earlier).

SACRE members are asked to consider whether they wish to continue meeting virtually due to the COVID-19 risks of meeting face to face.

Recommended that the date and venue of the next meeting be noted.



Agenda Item 6

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) held on Wednesday, 3 March 2021 at 4.00 pm as a virtual meeting.

Present

Councillor Suzy Horton (in the Chair) (Group D)

Group A - sarah coote, Elizabeth Jenkerson, Christine McMillan, Pastor Chris Thomas, Sandra Teacher, Geoff Wheeler, Jaswant Singh-Digpal, Sheikh Fazle Abbas Datoo

Group B - Sue Bowen, Jane Kelly, Revd Sam Duddles (Vice Chair)

Group C - Ali Beechurst

Group D - Maria Cole, Taki Jaffer

Debbie Anderson, Patricia Hannam & Lisa Gallacher

Geoff Wade, Jim O' Donnell, Duncan Dibb-Holland and Barbara Spiegelhalter (observing today from Humanists UK)

1. Welcome and Introductions (Al 1)

Councillor Horton, as Chair welcomed everyone and introductions were made. She particularly welcomed new members Sandra Teacher as the Group A Jewish representative and Jaswant Singh-Digpal as the Group A Sikh representative.

2. Apologies for Absence (Al 2)

Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Tom Coles. John Mills and Aasha Small.

3. Moment for Quiet Reflection (Al 3)

Maria Coles explained she had been part of the SACRE for over 20 years starting in Plymouth and later moving to Portsmouth. She gave two short readings that summarised how she felt about the teaching of religion to children. One was an extract from a schools Ofsted inspection and she said she believed teaching children about religion is good as it gives children a balance against racial prejudice. The second extract was by Rabbi Pete Tobias.

4. Declaration of Members' Interest (Al 4)

Elizabeth Jenkerson made her standard declaration that she is on the West Hill Panel that judges grants for SACREs.

5. Minutes of the Previous meeting held on 12 November 2020 (Al 5)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2020 be approved as a correct record.

6. Matters Arising from the minutes of 12 November 2020 (Al 6)

Patricia Hannam (Professional Advisor to the SACRE) explained that since the last meeting a small group had met to discuss updating the SACRE directory. An electronic copy had been located which was very good news and this now needed to be updated. Patricia was in discussion with Debbie Anderson, (Head of School Improvement at Portsmouth City Council) with regard to the next steps. If SACRE are content the group will continue to meet and take this forward.

7. Membership Update (Al 7)

Patricia Hannam presented the report. SACRE was pleased to reappoint sarah coote as Quaker representative and Geoff Wheeler as Baptist representative to Group A. Sandra Teacher as a Jewish representative and Jaswat Singh-Digpal as Sikh representative were appointed as new members to group A. Sue Bowen was also reappointed to Group B. This was excellent news for Portsmouth SACRE to fill many of the vacncies.

There is still a vacancy for a Roman Catholic representative and Patricia was awaiting a response from the diocesan office. There was also a vacancy for a Buddhist representative. Since the report was written she was delighted to receive a response from Humanist UK. Consequently, SACRE has Humanist observers present, with a view to make an appointment in time for SACRE's next meeting in June.

Sandra Teacher said she was very happy to be part of the SACRE as a representative of the Board of Deputies of British Jews said she would only be able to join the SACRE whilst the meetings continued to be online as she lives in London. She hoped that someone from the Portsmouth Jewish community would be able to take over in due course.

The Chair welcomed the new members of the SACRE.

8. Brief updates or notification of items to be brought to a future meeting (Al 8)

There were no updates.

9. Monitoring Group Report (Al 9)

Patricia Hannam, as Professional Advisor presented her report summarising the discussions of the Monitoring Sub Group which had been held on 11 February 2021.

She extended an invitation for SACRE members to join the next teacher focus group meeting so members can hear the discussions. Elizabeth Jenkerson had already attended some of these meetings. The meeting would be on 21 April at 4pm.

With regard to monitoring, Patricia said that with the support of the Local Authority a Portsmouth Primary RE network meeting had been re-established to develop contact with primary subject leaders. The monitoring group are looking at school websites to look at what a good school website would look like and they are in the process of communicating this to schools.

Debbie Anderson added that there will be skills and concepts children need to catch up on but it is important that this is broad and ambitious. Debbie was aware that this is what schools will be pursuing, it would not just be English and maths.

Councillor Horton said she regularly joined meetings with primary and secondary headteachers and she was excited to hear this morning the plans for primary schools around focusing on ensuring breadth of the curriculum.

The monitoring report was noted.

10. National and local updates on Religious Education (Al 10)

Patricia Hamman presented the report and showed members of the SACRE some slides to help explain the concept of worldviews. Worldviews is still open to interpretation and could mean at the very least either:

- More material/content to include in the curriculum in addition to Religion and/or
- A greater focus on the lived experience of religious life and/or
- A re-orientation of the subject to begin with children or young person's interests.

Patricia put this into the context of the Living Difference approach to teaching RE and the review, and said that teachers are saying that they already feel confident to handle the ambiguity of worldviews in light of the pedagogical approach to teaching in the Local Agreed Syllabus.

Patricia recommended that SACRE members read the THEOS report on worldviews (linked in her report) by Professor Trevor Cooling, Professor Bob Bowie and Professor Farid Panjwani. Jane Kelly also recommended the THEOS report which she felt gave a very good overview of the debate so far. At the end the three writers give their personal reflection and talk about their journeys.

In response to a question regarding whether worldviews would be looked at from a global or local perspective, Patricia highlighted that the law had not

been changed in relation to religious education. Whatever is decided to do by the summer would need to remain within the law. It was anticipated that Living Difference IV would stay with the existing purpose statement and have an appendix which explains the syllabus' position in relation to worldviews at that point. There is still a huge amount of dialogue going on in the national RE community.

Patricia added that she felt the cycle of enquiry is robust enough so teachers can teach the 'fuzzy edges' of what it is to live "with a religious or other orientation on life". Teachers are concerned as there is only one lesson a week for this. Any members of the SACRE would be welcome at the next teachers' focus group meeting on 21 April to share the latest thinking regarding curriculum making with Living Difference IV.

Sheikh Fazle Abbas said he had had a discussion with Patricia with regard to his feelings on worldviews. He felt that currently to look into the inclusion of worldviews we might not be able to give the full coverage with regard to the teaching of RE as part of the statutory curriculum. He noted that this was a conversation that was still developing.

Patricia said that it was worth thinking what was envisaged in the 1944 Education Act. She hoped this could be met in a collaborative way and explaining our relationship to a worldviews discussion was likely to be in an appendix rather than a radical change to the syllabus.

Debbie Anderson said that with regard to the cycle of enquiry, she felt for children and young people the ability to reflect and be critical thinkers is a crucial key skill in this digital age. She said it felt timely to be doing this review now.

Revd Duddles said she could understand the concerns about a radical change to the RE curriculum but could also see the appetite to look at the broader questions. During this pandemic we are all in a level playing field and our worldviews have been reduced to our home life and how we live that.

Patricia said they are also considering adding in pondering time to the syllabus when this is reviewed. This would be time that is unclaimed and less planned where the young people can follow their own leadings and interests. They are hoping to offer the opportunity for schools to plan up to 20% for pondering time. This could be carried in in three different ways:

- For the teacher to allow every year for child to follow their own interests. Towards the end of the term pupils would make a presentation to the class;
- In a unit the teacher teaches two cycles of enquiry before giving then space of three or four lessons for children/young people to follow up research on anything else linked with the unit but not already covered by the teacher;
- 3) To complete a cycle of enquiry, and after the 'evaluate/discernment step' for the child/young person to follow a further 'communicate and apply' step taking the enquiry out into the community to research what is going on in relation to what has been studied in the classroom.

There were some schools that were going to trial each of these potential options. Revd Duddles said this sounded brilliant. The Chair said this was an opportune time to make any changes to the RE curriculum.

The SW AERIAC SACRE Conference held on Monday 1 March was attended by over 50 people. Chris Thomas and Jane Kelly who attended on behalf of Portsmouth SACRE were invited to give a brief update. Chris said that the presentation on world views was very good. There is a huge range on what people think is worldviews. His concern is that this needs to be agreed as otherwise it will diffuse an already complicated syllabus.

Jane Kelly added that there was a very good presentation from Ruth Flanagan about how the worldviews approach bridges the gap between the typical secular children in the classroom and people from a religious background who they might see as 'exotic'. The worldviews approach reinforces that we all have shared experiences.

Jane added that was also a very good key note address from Farid Panjwani talking about decolonising the curriculum and gave some examples that he had spoken about. Patricia added that she as hoping to ask Farid to repeat his presentation to teachers in this area which was welcomed by the SACRE.

NASACRE on 24th May - Jane Kelly and Sam Duddles said they would like to attend this meeting. Elizabeth Jenkerson added that there was a NASACRE planning meeting tomorrow to finalise the plans. The current plan was to encourage a maximum of four representatives from each SACRE.

Revd Sam Duddles said that she had attended the last NASACRE meeting in November where they saw reports from the Westhill project from schools that had received funding, which could be found on the NASACRE website. She gave brief details of the two projects. If any other members of SACRE wished to attend the meeting in May they should get in touch.

RESOLVED that the report be noted and that Revd Sam Duddles and Jane Kelly would attend the NASACRE conference in May.

11. Date and venue of the next meeting (Al 11)

The next scheduled meeting is Wednesday 16th June 2021 at 4pm and this meeting was likely to be held virtually. This date was noted.

The meeting concluded a	it 5.20 pm.	
Councillor Suzy Horton		
Chair of SACRE		



Portsmouth SACRE

Agenda Item 8



Title of meeting: Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Date of meeting: 16 June 2021

Subject: Membership Report

Report by: Patricia Hannam

- 1. **Purpose of report:** This report updates SACRE regarding its membership.
- 2. **Recommendations:** That SACRE appoints Barbara Spiegelhalter as Humanist representative on group A with Geoff Wade as the reserve Humanist representative member. SACRE also formally co-opts Jessi Wilson from the Council of Portsmouth Students (CoPS) to SACRE.
- 3. **Background:** SACRE's membership is comprised of 4 groups; more detail is available in SACREs constitution: Group A: Christian denominations and other religions and their denominations, reflecting the principal religious traditions of the area. Group B: The Church of England with representatives nominated by the diocese. Group C: Teacher and Head teacher representation. Group D: The Local Authority: appointed by the Local Authority. Each group has one vote in the case of a voting matter. In addition SACRE can co-opt members, who do not have voting rights.

SACRE continues to seek a representative from Portsmouth Catholic Diocesan Office and also seeks a Hindu representative (following indication that SACRE's current representative wishes to step down) and Buddhist representation on Group A. SACRE has sought youth representation for some years and is delighted to have made contact with the Council of Portsmouth Students (CoPS) to take this further.

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document	Location





The recommendation(s) se	•	
rejected by	on	 •••
Signed by:		

Portsmouth SACRE

Agenda Item 10



Title of meeting: Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Date of meeting: Wednesday 16 June 2021

Subject: SACRE Monitoring Group Report

Report by: Patricia Hannam

Purpose of report: The purpose of this report is to inform SACRE of the
findings and discussions that took place during the meeting of the SACRE
monitoring sub-group on 27 May 2021. The group is working to support
SACRE in fulfilling its duty to ensure the effectiveness of RE through the
implementation of the Agreed Syllabus.

The group received an update regarding monitoring visits and teacher network meetings as well as the revision of the locally agreed syllabus and the directory. Provision for KS4 was discussed as well as an update on 2021 GCSE examination series. Recent contact made with the Council of Portsmouth Students (CoPS) and youth representation on SACRE and LA schools regarding RE was also discussed.

- 2. **Recommendations:** That SACRE receive the report
- 3. **Background:** The monitoring group met on 27 May at 16.00.

Present: Cllr Suzy Horton (Chair) Debbie Anderson, Elizabeth Jenkerson, Debbie Lucas, Patricia Hannam.

Apologies: Reverend Samantha Duddles (vice Chair)

3.1 Monitoring Visits: No monitoring visits have been made in the period since the last SACRE meeting. Ofsted are making a few section 8 visits currently with an expectation that section 5 visits may return in September.





- 3.2 KS4 RE: SACRE monitoring group noted the tremendous efforts KS4 teachers will have been making to ensure teacher assessed grades for this year's Religious Studies GCSE.
- 3.3 Update on other opportunities for monitoring RE in LA schools: good links are maintained with RE leaders in LA schools, and improvement in these contexts it taking place. Opportunities for training are offered through primary RE network meeting in Portsmouth and secondary RE network in Hampshire that teachers can book into through the Hampshire Learning Zone.
- 3.4 Review of the Locally Agreed Syllabus: Moving to Living Difference IV

 There continues to be dialogue with experts and relevant practitioners of religious faith traditions. Discussions are ongoing regarding the first proposal from the Commission on RE Report (CoRE) regarding Worldviews.

 LDIV will include appendices to explain the syllabus' relationship to the proposals regarding Religion and 'Worldviews', an appendix explaining the educational positioning of LDIV as well as in relation to RE's potential in relation to mitigating racism and xenophobia. Decisions have made in relation to progression. Early Years and Foundation Stage (EYFS) elements have been redeveloped in light of legal changes made since the last review. Specialist teachers of RE in the education of children with a range of Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and in a number of contexts writing these elements of the syllabus. Key ideas in relation to curriculum formation and being linked with the advice currently from Ofsted.





- 3.5 Directory Document: Rev Sam Duddles is kindly taking forward the development of this document which will be hosted online.
- 3.6 3-year Action Plan: A draft document will be brought to SACRE in November aligned with the anticipated adoption of Living Difference IV.

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document	Location	

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected by on
Signed by:



Portsmouth SACRE

Agenda Item 11



Title of meeting: Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Date of meeting: 16 June 2021

Subject: Update on National RE Matters

Report by: Patricia Hannam

- 1. **Purpose of report:** This report updates SACRE regarding National RE matters including activities of the Religious Education Council (REC), the National Association of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education (NASACRE) and Ofsted's latest report in relation to Religious Education
- 2. **Recommendations:** That SACRE notes the report.
- 3. **Background:**

The Religious Education Council (REC) Annual General Meeting was held on 11th May 2021. The REC is a membership organisation comprised of well over 60 organisations each of whom have an interested position in relation to religious education. In addition to the regular business of the organisation discussions were held in the afternoon regarding the Vision and Mission statements as well as the values of an organisation that brings together such a wide range of members together seeking to campaign for high quality religious education for all children in our schools. The REC Commissioned the Commission on RE (CoRE) report published in 2018.

National Association of SACREs (NASACRE).

On the 17 May 2021 NASACRE published a research report into SACRE Funding. This report can be accessed here: 1-376-nasacre-report-on-sacrefunding-in-england-2021.pdf and has 5 key recommendations. The first two in relation to SACREs and their LAs and the second two in relation to the DfE and Ministers. Portsmouth SACRE is well supported currently with a Clerk, Chairman and professional advisers available to support development of RE. NASACRE, the national body for SACRE's held its AGM on 24th May. Portsmouth SACRE was represented.

Ofsted and Religious Education.

Ofsted published a Review of religious education on 12 May 2021 and available here: Research review series: religious education - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). A key aspect of the report is to emphasise that RE in LA maintained schools must follow the agreed syllabus and that Academies (without a religious designation) must also arrange for RE to be taught to all pupils. This can either be in accordance with the locally agreed syllabus or in some other way ensure equally high-quality curricular provision. The report



Title of document



acknowledges the usefulness of the Agreed Syllabus in ensuring high-level outcomes, recognising that subject leaders find them helpful as they design their school RE curriculum. The report emphasises that RE teachers and leaders must be clear about the requirements of the locally agreed syllabus, where it applies. Ofsted notes that most locally agreed syllabuses are constructed on the assumption that the amount of curriculum time given to RE is at or above 5%. The review of Living Difference III will be taking into account this report. NASACRE has noted that some of the issues raised in the Ofsted Report have implications for the resourcing of RE.

Location

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

	The recommendation(s) set out above were a	
r	ejected by on	
	Nanad hu	
3	Signed by:	